
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Pension Fund Committee 
 
 

Date Tuesday 6 December 2011 

Time 10.00 am 

Venue Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 

Part A 
 
 

1. Declarations of interest (if any) 
 

2. The Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 29 September 2011  
(Pages 1 - 4) 

 

3. Graphs showing recent movements of the Stock and Share 
Indices  (Pages 5 - 20) 

 

4. Graphs showing recent movements of the major currencies 
against sterling  (Pages 21 - 26) 

 

5. Performance Measurement Report  (Pages 27 - 36) 
 

6. Pension Fund Investments  (Pages 37 - 42) 
 

7. Government Consultation on Changes to the Local Government 
Pension Scheme  (Pages 43 - 48) 

 

8. Academy Schools in the Pension Fund  (Pages 49 - 50) 
 

9. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the 
Meeting is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

 
 



10. Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the 
discussion of items containing exempt information   

 

Part B 
 
Items during which it is considered the meeting will not be open 

to the public (consideration of exempt or confidential 
information) 

 
11. The Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 29 September 2011  

(Pages 51 - 58) 
 

12. Report of the Pension Fund Advisor  (Pages 59 - 66) 
 

13. Report of Blackrock  (Pages 67 - 78) 
 

14. Report of Alliance Bernstein  (Pages 79 - 116) 
 

15. Report of CB Richard Ellis  (Pages 117 - 140) 
 

16. Report of Edinburgh Partners  (Pages 141 - 178) 
 

17. Report of Royal London Asset Management  (Pages 179 - 234) 
 

18. Report of Barings Asset Management  (Pages 235 - 242) 
 

19. Internal Audit Progress Report  (Pages 243 - 266) 
 

20. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the 
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration 

 
   

Colette Longbottom 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
 
 
 
 
County Hall 
Durham 
28 November 2011 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



To: The Members of the Pension Fund Committee 
 

County Council Members: 
Councillors Andy Turner, N Martin, C Carr, J Chaplow, A Hopgood, P Jopling, 
J Lethbridge, D Morgan, R Ord, G Richardson and R Todd 
 
Darlington Borough Council Members 
Councillor I G Hazeldine 
(vacancy) 
 
Scheduled Bodies Representative 
Mr D Sanders 
 
Admitted Bodies Representative: 
Mr K Tallintire 
 
Pensioner Representative 
Mrs O Brown 
 
Active Members Representative 
(vacancy) 
 
Further Education Colleges Representative 
(vacancy) 
 
Advisers: 
County Council Officers 
Chief Executive 
Corporate Director, 
Resources 
Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services 
Principal Finance 
Officer – Strategic 
Finance   

G Garlick 
D McLure 

 
C Longbottom 
 
H  Appleton 

 
 

 
Independent Advisers 
P J Williams 
H Prior                                   
 
Investment Managers 
Alliance Bernstein          
Barings Asset Management      
Blackrock    
CBRE                                        
Edinburgh Partners                   
 
Staff Observors 
UNISON                                   N Hancock 
GMB    
 
 

Contact: Jill Errington Tel: 0191 370 6250 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
 
 

At a Meeting of Pension Fund Committee held in Committee Room 2 - County Hall, 
Durham on Thursday 29 September 2011 at 1.00 pm 

 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor N Martin (Chair) 

 

Members of the Committee: 

Councillors C Carr, J Chaplow, P Jopling and R Ord 
 
Apologies: 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Andy Turner, A Hopgood, 
J Lethbridge, D Morgan, G Richardson and R Todd, and D Sanders 
 
Also Present: 
Admitted Bodies Representative 
K Tallintire 
 
 Durham County Council Officers: 
Corporate Director, Resources – D McLure 
Litigation Manager – B Smith 
Principal Finance Officer – Strategic Finance – H Appleton 
Payroll and Pensions Manager – N Orton 
 
Independent Advisers; 
P J Williams                       
PSolve Asset Solutions – H Smith 
                                          D Banks 
C Archer - Actuary 
  

 
1 Declarations of interest (if any)  

 
Councillor Carr declared a personal but not prejudicial interest in the reference 
made to Premier Waste, considered under matters arising from the Minutes. 
 

2 The Minutes of the last Meeting held on 6 June 2011  
 
The Minutes of the Meeting held on 6 June 2011 were agreed as a correct record 
and were signed by the Chair. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Matters Arising from the Minutes 
 
A Member referred to the increase in the number of employees accessing the 
scheme at 55 and the strain placed on the Pension Fund because of early 
retirement applications. He asked for clarification as to whether these costs were 
met from reserves. 
 
N Orton, Payroll and Pensions Manager responded that the early retirement costs 
were not but redundancy payments were met from reserves at present. In respect 
of Durham County Council and Darlington Borough Council early retirement costs 
were met by increased employer contributions. Other employers in the Scheme 
were required to make an additional contribution. 
 
In response to a further question in relation to other employers within the Scheme, 
N Orton explained the meaning of admitted bodies and what was required for 
organisations to be eligible to join the DCC Pension Fund. 
 
The Member also had a number of questions in relation to Premier Waste and it 
was agreed that this be discussed with the Member direct. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the information given, be noted. 
 
Actuarial Valuation as at 31 March 2010 
 
Members were advised that C Archer from AonHewitt, the Pension Fund Actuary 
was present to respond to queries that Members had at the last meeting in relation 
to assumptions around salary increases.  
 
C Archer outlined to Members the Fund’s experience between the 2007 and 2010 
valuation, the 2010 valuation results, salary increase assumption and the Fund’s 
experience since the 2010 valuation. 
 
With regard to the salary increase assumption he advised that this was a long term 
assumption amounting to 40 plus years for young members. Historically salary 
increases had been 1% to 2% above RPI on average and RPI plus 1.5% per 
annum was used for the long term assumption. Evidence showed that salaries 
tended to increase more rapidly following restraint and promotional salary increases 
tended to be higher during inflationary pay restraint. 
 
In addition, during the current phase of economic cycle it was expected that salary 
increases would be depressed, investment returns would be lower and fewer 
people would leave an organisation. 
 
A Member commented that people were living longer and had greater expectations 
when they retired. He therefore suggested that employees contributions should be 
increased, although it was considered by other Members that this would be 
unreasonable given the current pay freeze. 
 

Page 2



N Orton stated that the latest proposal from the employer’s side suggested an 
increase in employee contributions. Employees could elect not to pay the additional 
amount but would earn a lower accrual rate. Those on an annual salary of less than 
£15k would be protected.  
 
Following discussion it was 
 
RESOLVED  
 
That the information given, be noted.     
 

3 Graphs showing recent movements of the Stock and Share Indices  
 
Consideration was given to graphs showing recent movement in the Stock and 
Share Indices, a copy of which had been circulated. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the information given, be noted.  
 

4 Graphs showing recent movements of the major currencies against sterling  
 
Consideration was given to graphs showing recent movement in the major 
currencies against sterling, a copy of which had been circulated. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the information given, be noted. 
 

5 Performance Measurement Report  
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director, Resources which 
provided an overview of the Fund to date, a copy of which had been circulated. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the information given, be noted. 
 

6 Pension Fund Investments  
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director, Resources which 
gave details of the overall value of the Pension Fund as at 30 June 2011, of the 
additional sums available to the Managers for further investment and of the result of 
the latest Fund Rebalancing, a copy of which had been circulated. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the information given, be noted. 
 

Page 3



7 Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the Meeting is of 
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration  
 
Annual Governance Report 
Durham County Council Pension Fund Audit 2010/2011 
 
Consideration was given to the report produced by the Audit Commission in relation 
to the audit of the Durham County Council Pension Fund Audit 2010/2011, a copy 
of which had been circulated. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the information given, be noted. 
 

Page 4



3
8
0
0

4
0
0
0

4
2
0
0

4
4
0
0

F
T

S
E

 A
ll
 S

h
a

r
e

3
4
0
0

3
6
0
0

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



8
0
0

8
5
0

9
0
0

9
5
0

F
T

S
E

 N
. 
A

m
e

r
ic

a

7
0
0

7
5
0

8
0
0

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



6
5
0

7
5
0

8
5
0

F
T

S
E

 E
u

ro
p

e

5
5
0

6
5
0

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



1
3
0

1
3
5

1
4
0

1
4
5

1
5
0

F
T

S
E

 -
J

a
p

a
n

F
T

S
E

 J
a
p

a
n

1
1
5

1
2
0

1
2
5

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



9
5
0

1
0
0
0

1
0
5
0

1
1
0
0

F
T

S
E

 A
s
ia

-E
x

-J
a

p
a

n

8
0
0

8
5
0

9
0
0

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



2
.53

3
.54

1
0

 y
r
 U

S
 a

n
d

 U
K

 B
o
n

d
 Y

ie
ld

s

1
.52

1
0
 y

r
 G

il
t

1
0
 y

r
 U

S
T

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



0
.4

0
.6

0
.81

1
.2

1
0
 y

r 
In

d
e
x
 L

in
k
e
d

3
0
 y

r 
In

d
e
x
 L

in
k
e
d

3
0

y
r 

a
n

d
 1

0
Y

r 
In

d
e

x
-L

in
k

e
d

 G
il

ts
 

0

0
.2

0
.4

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



4

4
.2

4
.4

4
.6

3
0

 y
r 

G
il
t

3
.4

3
.6

3
.8

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



1
.5
8

1
.6

1
.6
2

1
.6
4

1
.6
6

1
.6
8

U
S

$
 v

s
. 

£

1
.5

1
.5
2

1
.5
4

1
.5
6

Agenda Item 4

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



1
.1
6

1
.1
8

1
.2

1
.2
2

€
v
s
. 

£

1
.1

1
.1
2

1
.1
4

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



1
2
5

1
3
0

1
3
5

1
4
0

£
 v

s
. 
Y

e
n

1
1
5

1
2
0

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Pension Fund/PT18 

 

Pension Fund Committee 
 

6 December 2011 
 
Performance Measurement Report  
 

 
 

Don McLure, Corporate Director, Resources 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1 The purpose of the report is to provide an overview for Members of the 

performance of the Fund to date.   
 
Background 
 
2 The performance of the six Managers is measured against 

personalised benchmarks chosen at the inception of the Fund.  The 
attached report from JPMorgan, the Fund’s custodian, shows:- 

 
 (a) The Managers benchmarks. 
 
 (b) The total Fund performance, for the quarter, year to date and 

since inception.   
 
 (c)  The Managers’ performance in absolute and relative terms 

against the relevant benchmarks, for the quarter, year to date 
and since inception. 

 
 (d) A portfolio comparison for the quarter ended 30 September 

2011 and for the period since inception. 
 
Recommendation 
 
3 Members note the information contained in this report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Hilary Appleton  Tel:  0191 3833544  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



   

Worldwide Securities Services

Performance Measurement Report 

for

September 30, 2011

Durham County Council Pension Fund

for period ending 

Page 29



Contents

Page

Benchmark Association Table 3

Executive Summary of Total Plan  4

Total Plan Performance Returns 5

Portfolio Comparison  6

Disclaimer  7

Page 30



 

Benchmark Association Table

PORTFOLIO INDEX TARGET WEIGHT %

Edinburgh Partners MSCI AC World Index (Gross) +3% pa 100.00

Blackrock FTSE All Share (Gross) +3% pa 100.00

Alliance Berstein GBP Libor (3 month) +3% pa 100.00

Royal London FTSE index Linked >5 years +0.5% pa 100.00

Barings GBP Libor (3 month) +4% pa 100.00

CBRE 1 Headline RPI +5% pa 100.00

CBRE 2 Headline RPI +5% pa 100.00

Re Alliance Berstein PPIP GBP Libor (3 month) +3% pa 100.00

Total Plan Composite Manager Weighted benchmark Not Applicable 100.00

3Page 31



Executive Summary of Total Plan as at 30/09/2011

Overview

Market Values

Qtr 3 - 11 Qtr 2 - 11 Qtr 1 - 11 Qtr 4 - 10

Total Plan 1,683.16 1,784.05 1,751.57 1,724.36

Performance

Performance (%) *

Qtr Ytd 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs

Since 

02/2008

Total Plan -6.07 -3.09 0.89 7.5            - 3.92

Total Plan Benchmark -4.54 -0.81 4.48 8.4            - 6.09

Excess return -1.52 -2.28 -3.58 -0.87 -2.18 

Total Plan Performance

In GBP mil's

-8.00  

-6.00  

-4.00  

-2.00  

0.00  

2.00  

4.00  

6.00  

8.00  

10.00  

Qtr Ytd 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs Since 02/2008 

Total Plan Total Plan Benchmark Excess return 

During the quarter the total market value of the Durham County Council Pension Plan  decreased by -£100.88m to £1,683.16m. There 

were contributions into the plan totalling £7.71m over the quarter, so net losses were therefore -£108.59m. 

 

The performance return for the Plan over the third quarter of 2011 was -6.07%, compared to the Plan benchmark return of -4.54%. The 

Plan therefore underperformed the benchmark by  -1.52%. 

 

Equity markets were down over this quarter with the FTSE All Share (+3%) falling around  -12.85%  and the MSCI AC World index 

(+3%) also down by around -14.16% in Sterling terms. Index Linked bonds were up with the FTSE index linked over 5 years index 

(+0.5%) increasing by around  +7.9%. 

 

 

4
Page 32



 

Total Plan Performance Returns as at 30/09/11

Currency GBP

 
Mkt. Val. in 

Mil's Qtr Ytd 1 Year 2 Years 3 Years

Since 

02/2008

Total Plan 1683.2 -6.07 -3.09 0.89 5.52 7.5              3.92

Total Plan Benchmark -4.54 -0.81 4.48 7.76 8.4              6.09

Excess return -1.52 -2.28 -3.58 -2.24 -0.87 -2.18 

 
Mkt. Val. in 

Mil's Qtr Ytd 1 Year 2 Years 3 Years

Since 

02/2008

Edinburgh Partners 432.1 -13.80 -12.94 -7.58 -2.67 3.2              0.69

MSCI AC World Index (Gross) +3% pa -14.16 -10.81 -1.58 5.87 9.0              5.05

Excess return 0.36 -2.13 -6.00 -8.54 -5.76 -4.36 

Blackrock 312.8 -14.83 -9.98 -3.87 7.55 11.2            1.63

FTSE All Share (Gross) +3% pa -12.85 -8.77 -1.30 6.94 9.3              3.38

Excess return -1.98 -1.21 -2.57 0.61 1.94 -1.75 

Alliance Bernstein 260.1 -1.81 0.78 1.31 5.14 5.8              3.95

GBP Libor +3% pa 0.97 2.86 3.81 3.74 4.2              5.01

Excess return -2.78 -2.08 -2.50 1.39 1.55 -1.06 

Re Alliance Bernstein PPIP 23.4 -5.45 -6.11 -1.06 - - 11.82

GBP Libor +3% pa 0.97 2.86 3.81 - - 3.76

Excess return -6.41 -8.97 -4.88 - - 8.06

Royal London 404.1 7.74 12.58 13.66 12.04 9.5              8.69

FTSE index Linked >5 years +0.5% pa 7.90 12.99 14.37 12.19 9.4              8.50

Excess return -0.16 -0.41 -0.71 -0.14 0.10 0.19

Barings 142.6 -2.15 -0.36 3.09 6.86 10.6            7.27

GBP Libor +4% pa 1.21 3.61 4.82 4.75 5.3              6.03

Excess return -3.36 -3.97 -1.73 2.12 5.31 1.24

CBRE1 80.0 1.33 5.98 9.01 10.06 -1.20 -4.25 

Headline RPI +5% pa 2.38 8.02 10.84 10.35 8.0              8.50

Excess return -1.05 -2.04 -1.83 -0.29 -9.22 -12.75 

CBRE2 28.0 -16.57 -15.34 -10.15 2.62 11.7            -2.01 

Headline RPI +5% pa 2.38 8.02 10.84 10.35 8.0              8.50

Excess return -18.96 -23.36 -20.99 -7.73 3.68 -10.51 

*All Portfolio and Composite returns are Gross of Fees. For time periods in excess of 1 year the performance returns are annualised.

Performance (%) *

-13.80  
-14.83  

-1.81  

-5.45  

7.74  

-2.15  

1.33  

-16.57  

-20.00  

-15.00  

-10.00  

-5.00  

0.00  

5.00  

10.00  

Edinburgh Partners Blackrock Alliance Bernstein 

Re Alliance Bernstein 

PPIP Royal London Barings CBRE1  CBRE2 

Manager Quarterly Returns 

 5Page 33



Portfolio Comparison for Quarter 3, 2011

Portfolio Name
Current Market 

Value

Portfolio 

Weight

Portfolio 

Return (%)

Benchmark 

Return (%)

Excess 

Return (%)

Current 

Contribution to 

Return

Total Plan 1,683,164,172 100.00% (6.07) (4.54) (1.52)

Edinburgh Partners 432,141,528 25.67% (13.80) (14.16) 0.36 (3.92)

Blackrock 312,755,979 18.58% (14.83) (12.85) (1.98) (3.11)

Royal London 404,103,960 24.01% 7.74 7.90 (0.16) 1.66

Alliance Bernstein 260,118,855 15.45% (1.81) 0.97 (2.78) (0.28)

Re Alliance Bernstein PPIP 23,381,265 1.39% (5.45) 0.97 (6.41) (0.08)

Barings 142,647,687 8.47% (2.15) 1.21 (3.36) (0.19)

CBRE1 79,996,395 4.75% 1.33 2.38 (1.05) 0.05

CBRE2 28,018,503 1.66% (16.57) 2.38 (18.96) (0.32)

Portfolio Comparison  for Year to Date, 2011

Portfolio Name
Current Market 

Value

Portfolio 

Weight

Portfolio 

Return (%)

Benchmark 

Return (%)

Excess 

Return (%)

Current 

Contribution to 

Return

Total Plan 1,683,164,172 100.00% (3.09) (0.81) (2.28)

Edinburgh Partners 432,141,528 25.67% (12.94) (10.81) (2.13) (3.62)

Blackrock 312,755,979 18.58% (9.98) (8.77) (1.21) (1.88)

Royal London 404,103,960 24.01% 12.58 12.99 (0.41) 2.56

Alliance Bernstein 260,118,855 15.45% 0.78 2.86 (2.08) 0.09

Re Alliance Bernstein PPIP 23,381,265 1.39% (6.11) 2.86 (8.97) (0.08)

Barings 142,647,687 8.47% (0.36) 3.61 (3.97) (0.04)

CBRE1 79,996,395 4.75% 5.98 8.02 (2.04) 0.22

CBRE2 28,018,503 1.66% (15.34) 8.02 (23.36) (0.29)

Edinburgh Partners 

25.7% 

Blackrock 

18.6% 
Royal London 

24.0% 

Alliance Bernstein 

15.5% 

Re Alliance Bernstein 

PPIP 

1.4%

Barings 

8.5% 

CBRE1  

4.8% CBRE2 

1.7% 

Manager Allocation 

 6Page 34



Disclaimer
Copyright ©2011 JPMorgan Chase & Co. All rights reserved.  

  

This report is provided exclusively for the purpose of assisting the customer in monitoring the investment performance of its accounts.  J.P. Morgan is providing a reporting service to the customer 

to assist it in the management of the accounts and, in doing so, is not acting in a fiduciary capacity for the accounts.  J.P. Morgan has no responsibility for the selection, monitoring or termination of 

any investment manager with respect to any of the accounts.  The reports are not intended to be considered the rendering of investment advice or in any way to influence any investment decisions 

or the selection of any investment managers for the accounts.  The customer assumes sole responsibility for its use of the reports. 

  

This report contains information that is the property of J.P. Morgan and/or its content providers, and is intended for use by the investment officers of our institutional clients. This report may not be 

copied, published, or used in whole or in part with third-parties for any purposes other than expressly authorized by J.P. Morgan. 

  

The information furnished in this report may contain data obtained from third-party sources that J.P. Morgan believes to be reliable. However, J.P. Morgan makes no warranty, express or implied, 

concerning the accuracy or completeness of third-party data.  Where J.P. Morgan relies on accounting, pricing and associated security data – or instructions for what accounts comprise composites – 

by the customer or its third party administrators, J.P. Morgan takes no responsibility for the accuracy of such information. 

  

Third-party data is the intellectual property of those vendors and is subject to restrictions contained in the licenses, which J.P. Morgan cannot unilaterally change.  If the third party supplier adds 

additional restrictions to data use, J.P. Morgan shall use reasonable efforts to notify the customer of such changes in writing.  Customer's continued use of the report after receipt of notice shall 

constitute customer's acceptance of the revised usage provision. 

  

The information contained in this report may be subject to change from time to time without prior notice to the Customer, for reasons including, but not limited to, the subsequent restating of 

accounting information or index returns. 

  

The information furnished in this report does not constitute the provision of ‘financial product advice’ as defined under the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) and does not take into account the financial 

situation, needs or objectives of individuals in Australia.  

  

The information furnished in this report is available in New Zealand solely to persons who are wholesale clients for the purposes of the Financial Advisers Act 2008. If you do not meet this criterion, 

you are not entitled to this report. 

  

The Global Industry Classification Standard ("GICS") was developed by and is the exclusive property and a service mark of Morgan Stanley Capital International Inc. ("MSCI") and Standard & Poor's, a 

division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. ("S&P") and is licensed for use by The JPMorgan Chase & Co. and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Neither MSCI, S&P, nor any other party involved in 

making or compiling the GICS or any GICS classifications makes any express or implied warranties or representations with respect to such standard or classification (or the results to be obtained by 

the use thereof), and all such parties hereby expressly disclaim all warranties of originality, accuracy, completeness, merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose with respect to any of such 

standard or classification. Without limiting any of the foregoing, in no event shall MSCI, S&P, any of their affiliates or any third party involved in making or compiling the GICS or any GICS 

classifications have any liability for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential or any other damages (including lost profits) even if notified of the possibility of such damages. 

  

Standard and Poor's including its subsidiary corporations ("S&P") is a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. Reproduction of S&P Index Alerts in any form is prohibited except with the prior 

written permission of S&P. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error by S&P sources, S&P or others, S&P does not guarantee the accuracy, adequacy, completeness or availability of 

any information and is not responsible for any errors or omissions or for the results obtained from the use of such information. S&P gives not express or implied warranties, including, but not limited 

to, any warranties or merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose or use. In no event shall S&P be liable for any indirect, special or consequential damages in connection with subscribers or 

others' use of S&P Index Alerts. 

  

MSCI makes no express or implied warranties or representations and shall have no liability whatsoever with respect to any MSCI data contained herein.  The MSCI data may not be further 

redistributed or used as a basis for other indices or any securities or financial products.  This report is not approved, reviewed or produced by MSCI. 

  

FTSE ® is a trade mark of London Stock Exchange Plc and The Financial Times Limited and is used by FTSE under license. All rights in the FTSE Indices vest in FTSE and/or its licensors. Neither FTSE nor 

its licensors accept any liability for any errors or omissions in the FTSE Indices or underlying data. 

  

The Industry Classification Benchmark is a joint product of FTSE International Limited and Dow Jones & Company, Inc. and has been licensed for use. "FTSE" is a trade and service mark of London 

Stock Exchange and The Financial Times Limited. "Dow Jones" and "DJ" are trade and service marks of Dow Jones & Company Inc. FTSE and Dow Jones do not accept any liability to any person for 

any loss or damage arising out of any error or omission in the ICB. 

  

The Dow Jones Wilshire IndexesSM are calculated, distributed and marketed by Dow Jones & Company, Inc. pursuant to an agreement between Dow Jones and Wilshire and have been licensed for 

use. All content of the Dow Jones Wilshire IndexesSM © 2011 Dow Jones & Company, Inc. & Wilshire Associates Incorporated.  

  

Frank Russell Company ("FRC") is the source and owner of the Russell Index data contained or reflected in this material and all trademarks and copyrights related thereto.  The presentation may 

contain confidential information and unauthorized use, disclosure, copying, dissemination or redistribution is strictly prohibited. This is a USER presentation of the Russell Index data.  Frank Russell 

Company is not responsible for the formatting or configuration of this material or for any inaccuracy in USER's presentation thereof. 

  

The Merrill Lynch Indices are used with permission. Copyright 2011, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated. All rights reserved. The Merrill Lynch Indices may not be copied, used, or 

distributed without Merrill Lynch's prior written approval. Merrill Lynch does not guarantee the quality, accuracy and/or completeness of the Merrill Lynch indices or any data included therein or 

derived therefrom and shall not be liable to any third party in connection with their use. 

  

© UBS 2011. All rights reserved. The name UBS Global Convertible Bond Index and the names of the related UBS AG sub-indices (together the “UBS Indices”) are proprietary to UBS AG (“UBS”). UBS 

and MACE Advisers Ltd (the UBS Global Convertible Bond Index Calculation Agent) are together the “Index Parties”. 

  

© IPD (Investment Property Databank Ltd.) 2011 All rights conferred by law of copyright, by virtue of international copyright conventions and all other intellectual property laws are reserved by IPD. 

No part of the Mercer / IPD Australian Pooled Property Fund Index - Wholesale Core may be reproduced or transmitted, in any form or by any means, without the prior written consent of IPD.  This 

index is neither appropriate nor authorized by IPD for use as a benchmark for portfolio or manager performance, or as the basis for any business decision. IPD gives no warranty or representation that 

the use of this information will achieve any particular result for you.  Neither Mercer nor IPD has any liability for any losses, damages, costs or expenses suffered by any person as a result of any 

reliance on this information. 

  

The NZX indices referred to in this report are the property of NZX Limited (“NZX”).  Any adaptation, reproduction or transmittance of the data or contents of the NZX indices in any form or by any 

means other than for private use is prohibited without the prior written permission of NZX.  NZX and its affiliates, directors, officers, agents or employees do not make any warranty of any kind, either 

express or implied, as to the accuracy of the content of the NZX indices or fitness for a particular purpose or use.  NZX hereby disclaims all liability to the maximum extent permitted by law in relation 

to the NZX indices. Neither NZX, its subsidiary companies, nor their directors, officers, agents or employees shall, under any circumstances, be liable to any person for any direct, indirect, 

consequential, incidental, special or punitive damages, howsoever arising (whether in negligence or otherwise), out of or in connection with the content, any omission from the content, any use of the 

content or any actions taken or reliance by any person thereon. 

Barclays Capital is the source of its respective indices. 

 DAX indices are registered trademarks of Deutsche Borse AG. 

Fixed income risk characteristics provided by Blackrock Solutions. 

Citigroup is the source of its respective indices. 

© TSX Copyright 2011 TSX Inc. All Rights Reserved. 

Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited is the source of its respective indices. 

Trust Universe Comparison Service ® and TUCS ®. 

  

The calculation of Value-at-Risk requires numerous assumptions that should be kept in mind when interpreting it. These limitations include but are not limited to the following: VaR measures may not 

appropriately convey the magnitude of sudden and unexpected extreme events; historical data that forms the basis of VaR may fail to predict content and future market volatility; our VaR 

methodology does not fully reflect the effects of market illiquidity (the inability to sell or hedge a position over a relatively long period) and does not incorporate credit risk events that may affect its 

value. 

  

The information furnished in this report may be based in part on services provided by Algorithmics (U.S.), Inc. and/or its affiliates (“Algorithmics”).  Algorithmics does not make any express or 

implied warranty or representation regarding its services or contributions to this report, including any warranty of originality, accuracy, completeness, merchantability or fitness for a particular 

purpose, nor shall its services or contributions to this report be construed as providing any financial advice, auditing, accounting, appraisal, regulatory or compliance services.  Algorithmics is not 

responsible for the data or assumptions that are processed through Algorithmics’ services nor can Algorithmics guarantee the accuracy or validity of data received from third parties that enables the 

service to generate the information contained in this report.  In no event shall Algorithmics have any liability for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential or any other damages arising out 

or relating to its services or contributions to this report, or your reliance thereon.  By accepting this report, the recipient is agreeing to the foregoing limitations on Algorithmics’ responsibility and 

7

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



REPORTS/PENSION FUND/PT19 

 

Pension Fund Committee 
 

6 December 2011 
 

Pension Fund Investments 

 

 
 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 

Purpose of the Report 
 

1. To inform the Committee of the overall value of the Pension Fund as at  
30 September 2011 of the additional sums available to the Managers for 
further investment and of the result of the latest Fund Rebalancing. 

 

Value of the Fund 
 

2. Reports from the six appointed Managers AllianceBernstein, Barings, 
BlackRock, CBRE, Edinburgh Partners and Royal London have been sent out 
with the papers but for information the Value of the Fund as at 30 September 
2011 was £1,683,160,000. 

 
Allocation of New Money 
 

3. Table 1 details the cash position of the Fund, cash flow for the last four 
quarters, and an estimated cash flow for the quarter ending 31 December 
2011.   

 

4. In determining the amount of cash to be allocated to Managers at the quarter 
ended 31 December 2011, the un-invested cash balance at the end of the 
previous quarter, together with interest received in that quarter, is considered. 
The amount allocated to each Manager is subject to the need to retain money 
to meet the Fund's net cash outflow.  After taking these issues into account it 
was decided that £15,000,000 be recovered from the sums to be allocated to 
the Managers for investment in the quarter. 

 

Fund Rebalancing 
 
5. Table 2 showing the Cash Rebalancing matrix.  The rebalancing will reflect 

the figures shown in the “Rebalanced” column and will take place, as agreed 
previously on 12 January 2012.   

 
Recommendation 
 
6. Members are asked to note the information contained in this report. 
 

Contact:  Hilary Appleton  Tel: 0191 3833544  

Agenda Item 6

Page 37



REPORTS/PENSION FUND/PT15 

 
 

P
age 38



R
E

P
O

R
T

S
/P

E
N

S
IO

N
 F

U
N

D
/P

T
2

0
 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

 

   
3

1
.1

2
.1

0
 

3
1

.0
3

.1
1

 
3

0
.0

6
.1

1
 

3
0

.0
9

.1
1

 
3

1
.1

2
.1

1
 

 
Q

u
a

rt
e
r 

E
n

d
e
d

 
E

s
ti

m
a

te
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
E

s
ti

m
a

te
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
E

s
ti

m
a

te
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
E

s
ti

m
a

te
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
E

s
ti

m
a

te
 

(1
) 

(2
) 

(3
) 

(4
) 

(5
) 

(6
) 

(7
) 

(8
) 

(9
) 

(1
0
) 

 
£
 

£
 

£
 

£
 

£
 

£
 

£
 

 
 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 

- 
D
C
C
 

1
7
,5
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
7
,7
3
8
,7
2
4
 

1
7
,4
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
8
,6
1
0
,0
7
0
 

1
8
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
8
,9
4
4
,0
5
6
 

1
9
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
6
,9
0
1
,5
4
1
 

1
6
,6
5
3
,0
0
0
 

 
 

- 
O
th
e
r 

7
,4
0
0
,0
0
0
 

7
,1
9
1
,3
7
0
 

7
,3
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
0
,7
0
2
,3
1
9
 

7
,3
0
0
,0
0
0
 

7
,2
6
8
,0
4
7
 

7
,3
0
0
,0
0
0
 

6
,2
4
1
,5
3
0
 

6
,5
0
0
,0
0
0
 

P
e
n
s
io
n
s
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

1
,2
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
,1
3
6
,7
2
3
 

1
,1
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
,1
9
6
,1
9
9
 

1
,1
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
,1
9
7
,0
0
2
 

1
,2
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
,1
3
5
,9
0
3
 

1
,1
3
0
,0
0
0
 

T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
V
a
lu
e
s
 

2
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
,8
5
4
,1
3
5
 

2
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

3
,6
5
1
,3
8
4
 

2
,7
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
,4
4
8
,2
1
5
 

1
,2
0
0
,0
0
0
 

3
,6
7
4
,2
9
5
 

1
,5
0
0
,0
0
0
 

M
is
c
e
lla
n
e
o
u
s
 

1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
,0
2
9
,7
0
7
 

5
0
0
,0
0
0
 

9
6
9
,3
0
6
 

5
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
1
,0
1
6
,0
6
8
 

3
0
0
,0
0
0
 

2
8
0
,3
6
7
 

3
0
0
,0
0
0
 

G
ro
s
s
 D
iv
id
e
n
d
 &
 I
n
te
re
s
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

4
3
,3
9
5
 

5
1
,0
0
0
 

5
1
,3
8
9
 

4
0
,0
0
0
 

T
o
ta
l 
In
c
o
m
e
 

2
9
,1
0
0
,0
0
0
 

2
8
,9
5
0
,6
5
9
 

2
8
,3
0
0
,0
0
0
 

3
5
,1
9
0
,6
8
4
 

2
9
,6
4
0
,0
0
0
 

3
9
,9
1
6
,7
8
3
 

2
9
,0
5
1
,0
0
0
 

2
8
,2
8
5
,0
2
5
 

2
6
,1
2
3
,0
0
0
 

P
a
yr
o
ll 
P
a
ys
h
e
e
ts
 

1
7
,5
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
7
,7
2
8
,1
3
7
 

1
8
,0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
7
,8
2
4
,6
7
6
 

1
8
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
8
,6
8
3
,5
8
8
 

1
8
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
8
,9
9
8
,6
1
3
 

1
9
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

P
a
y
a
b
le
s
 P
a
ys
h
e
e
ts
 

  
(i
n
c
l.
 M

a
n
a
g
e
rs
’ 
fe
e
s
) 

1
0
,0
0
0
.0
0
0
 

8
,1
0
0
,0
4
5
 

8
,5
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
2
,7
7
5
,6
6
5
 

1
1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
5
,8
4
3
,6
3
0
 

1
1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

1
1
,1
8
1
,7
6
0
 

1
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

T
o
ta
l 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 

2
7
,5
0
0
,0
0
0
 

2
5
,8
2
8
,1
8
2
 

2
6
,5
0
0
,0
0
0
 

3
0
,6
0
0
,3
4
1
 

2
9
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

3
4
,5
2
7
,2
1
8
 

2
9
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

3
0
,1
8
0
,3
7
3
 

2
9
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

S
u
rp
lu
s
 /
 (
D
e
fi
c
it
) 

1
,6
0
0
,0
0
0
 

3
,1
2
2
,4
7
7
 

1
,8
0
0
,0
0
0
 

4
,5
9
0
,3
4
3
 

6
4
0
,0
0
0
 

5
,3
8
9
,5
6
5
 

5
1
,0
0
0
 

(1
,8
9
5
,3
4
8
) 

(2
,8
7
7
,0
0
0
) 

N
e
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l 

p
a
ym

e
n
ts
/(
re
c
e
ip
ts
) 

 
3
,6
7
0
,4
8
9
 

 
0
 

 
5
,2
8
9
,3
8
2
 

 
7
,7
0
5
,5
8
4
 

 

B
a
la
n
c
e
 a
t 
B
a
n
k
 (
o
p
e
n
in
g
) 

 
2
5
,0
8
7
,1
8
8
 

 
2
2
,2
3
5
,8
5
7
 

 
2
6
,1
7
6
,6
0
1
 

 
2
5
,2
0
6
,0
8
4
 

 

B
a
la
n
c
e
 a
t 
B
a
n
k
 (
c
lo
s
in
g
) 

 
2
2
,2
3
5
,8
5
7
 

 
2
6
,1
7
6
,6
0
1
 

 
2
5
,2
0
6
,0
8
4
 

 
1
4
,3
4
1
,6
6
9
 

 

M
o
n
e
y
 p
a
id
/(
re
c
o
v
e
re
d
) 

to
/(
fr
o
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r)
 

 
0
 

 
0
 

 
0
 

 
0
 

 

  Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



R
E

B
A

L
A

�
C

I
�

G
 O

F
 D

u
r
h

a
m

 P
/F

 A
S

S
E

T
S

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
u
n
d

B
en
ch
m
a
rk
 

P
ro
p
o
rt
io
n

M
a
n
d
a
te
 T
y
p
e

M
at
ch
in
g
 F
u
n
d

2
0
%

G
o
v
er
n
m
en
t 
B
o
n
d
s

2
0
.0
%

3
3
3
.6
2

In
v
es
tm

en
t 
F
u
n
d

8
0
%

V
ar
io
u
s

8
0
.0
%

1
3
3
4
.4
8

1
0
0
.0
%

1
6
6
8
.1
0

9
5
%

1
0
5
%

3
0
-S
ep
-1
1

+
/-

V
a
lu
e

%
T
a
rg
et

A
ll
o
ca
ti
o
n

£
m

£
m

%
%

£
m
.

%
£
m
.

R
L
A
M

4
0
4
.1
0

2
4
.2
%

2
0
.0
%

-6
4
.9

3
3
9
.1
5

2
0
.3
%

1
9
.0
%

3
1
6
.9
4

2
1
.0
%

3
5
0
.3
0

0
.0
0

-5
3
.8
0

M
a
tc
h
in
g
 F
u
n
d
 s
u
b
-t
o
ta
l

4
0
4
.1
0

2
4
.2
%

2
0
.0
%

-6
4
.9

3
3
9
.1
5

2
0
.3
%

1
9
.0
%

3
1
6
.9
4

2
1
.0
%

3
5
0
.3
0

0
.0
0

-5
3
.8
0

B
la
ck
ro
ck

3
1
2
.8
0

1
8
.8
%

2
0
.0
%

2
6
.4

3
3
9
.1
5

2
0
.3
%

1
9
.0
%

3
1
6
.9
4

2
1
.0
%

3
5
0
.3
0

4
.1
4

0
.0
0

A
ll
ia
n
ce
B
er
n
st
ei
n

2
8
3
.5
0

1
7
.0
%

1
6
.0
%

-1
2
.2

2
7
1
.3
2

1
6
.3
%

1
5
.2
%

2
5
3
.5
5

1
6
.8
%

2
8
0
.2
4

0
.0
0

-3
.2
6

E
d
in
b
u
rg
h
 P
ar
tn
er
s

4
3
2
.1
0

2
5
.9
%

2
8
.0
%

4
2
.7

4
7
4
.8
1

2
8
.5
%

2
6
.6
%

4
4
3
.7
1

2
9
.4
%

4
9
0
.4
2

1
1
.6
1

0
.0
0

B
ar
in
g
s

1
4
2
.6
0

8
.5
%

8
.0
%

-6
.9

1
3
5
.6
6

8
.1
%

7
.6
%

1
2
6
.7
8

8
.4
%

1
4
0
.1
2

0
.0
0

-2
.4
8

G
lo
b
a
l 
P
ro
p
er
ty
 M
a
n
a
g
er

C
B
R
E
 1

0
.0
%

C
B
R
E
 2

0
.0
%

A
ll
o
ca
te
d
 u
n
d
ra
w
n
 c
as
h

2
5
.4

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l

1
0
8
.0
0

6
.5
%

8
.0
%

0
.0

1
0
8
.0
0

6
.5
%

7
.6
%

1
2
6
.7
8

8
.4
%

1
4
0
.1
2

1
8
.7
8

0
.0
0

In
v
es
tm
en
t 
F
u
n
d
 s
u
b
-t
o
ta
l

1
2
7
9
.0
0

7
6
.7
%

8
0
.0
%

4
9
.9
5

1
3
2
8
.9
5

7
9
.7
%

7
6
.0
%

1
2
6
7
.7
6

8
4
.0
%

1
4
0
1
.2
0

0
.0
0

0
.0
0

In
v
es
tm
en
ts
 s
u
b
-t
o
ta
l

1
6
8
3
.1
0

1
0
0
.9
%
1
0
0
.0
%

-1
5
.0
0

4
3
2
.4
3
1
0
0
.0
%

9
5
.0
%

3
8
0
.3
3

9
5
.2
%

1
5
8
8
.6
7

0
.0
0

-9
4
.4
3

In
te
rn
al
 C
as
h

-1
5
.0
0

0
.0

C
as
h
 a
t 
C
u
st
o
d
ia
n

0
.0
0

0
.0

C
a
sh
 s
u
b
-t
o
ta
l

-1
5
.0
0

-0
.9
%

0
.0
%

-1
5
.0

0
.0
0

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
0

0
.0
%

0
.0
0

1
5
.0
0

0
.0
0

F
u
n
d
 T
o
ta
l

1
6
6
8
.1
0
1
0
0
.0
%

1
0
0
.0
%

-3
0
.0
0

1
6
6
8
.1
0
1
0
0
.0
%

4
5
.3
9
-9
6
.9
1

D
A
A
 M
a
n
a
g
er

B
ro
a
d
 B
o
n
d
 M
a
n
a
g
er

M
a
tc
h
in
g
 B
o
n
d
 M
a
n
a
g
er

O
u
ts
id
e 
L
im
it

M
a
x

5
%
 T
o
le
ra
n
ce

A
ft
er
 R
eb
a
la
n
ci
n
g

M
in

C
a
sh

R
eb
a
la
n
ce
d

G
lo
b
a
l 
E
q
u
it
y
 M
a
n
a
g
er

U
K
 E
q
u
it
y
 M
a
n
a
g
er

C
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\7
\7
\9
\A
I0
0
0
0
4
9
7
7
\$
ii3
1
4
ty
v
.x
ls

2
8
/1
1
/1
1

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Pension Fund Committee 
 

6 December 2011 
 
Government Consultation on Changes to 
the Local Government Pension Scheme 
 

 

 
 

Report of Don McLure, Corporate Director, Resources 

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1 The purpose of the report is to provide Members with information 

on the Government’s consultation on changes to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), including details of 
recently published plans for longer term reform. 
 

Background 
 
2 As part of the Government’s Spending Review the following 

savings are required public sector pension schemes: 
 
2012/13 £1.2 billion 
2013/14 £2.3 billion 
2014/15 £2.8 billion 
 
This is equivalent to an average contribution rate increase for 
contributing members of 3.2% of pensionable pay. 

 
3 The LGPS has been tasked with delivering £900 million of 

savings by 2015. In recognition of the LGPS’s unique position as 
the only major public sector pension scheme that is funded, the 
Government allowed the representatives of the LGPS employers 
and LGPS scheme members to negotiate and agree a way to 
deliver these savings. Unfortunately, as it was not possible for the 
employer representatives and scheme member representatives to 
reach a consensus, the Government has issued its own 
proposals set out in the current consultation. 

 
 Consultation Document 
 
4 On 6th October 2011 the Government issued a consultation 

document which set out two options for achieving the £900 million 
saving by 2015. These were as follows: 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 43



Option 1 
 

• Employee contributions to increase from 1 April 2012, with different 
increases applying dependent on what full-time equivalent rate of 
pay in individual is getting, and with increases phased in over three 
years : 

 

Whole-time equivalent 
pay 

Rate  
Now 

April 
2012 

April 
2013 

April 
2014 

Overall 
increase 

£0 - £12,900 5.5% 5.5% 5.5% 5.5% 0.0% 

£12,901 to £15,100 5.8% 5.8% 5.8% 5.8% 0.0% 

£15,101 to £19,400 5.9% 5.9% 6.0% 6.0% 0.1% 

£19,401 to £21,000 6.5% 6.7% 7.2% 7.7% 1.2% 

£21,001 to £32,400 6.5% 7.2% 8.0% 8.3% 1.8% 

£32,401 to £43,300 6.8% 7.5% 8.3% 8.7% 1.9% 

£43,301 to £60,000 7.2% 8.2% 8.7% 9.0% 1.8% 

£60,001 to £81,100 7.2% 8.7% 9.2% 10.0% 2.8% 

£81,101 to £100,000 7.5% 9.0% 9.8% 11.0% 3.5% 

£100,001 to £150,000 7.5% 9.5% 11.0% 12.0% 4.5% 

£150,001+ 7.5% 10.0% 12.0% 12.5% 5.0% 

 
 

• Change rate pension is earned from 1/60th pay to 1/64th from April 
2013 and 1/65th from April 2014 

 

Page 44



Option 2 
 

• Employee contributions to increase (by slightly less) from 1 April 
2012, with different increases applying dependent on what full-time 
equivalent rate of pay in individual is getting, and with increases 
phased in over three years : 

 

Whole-time equivalent 
pay 

Rate  
Now 

April 
2012 

April 
2013 

April 
2014 

Overall 
increase 

£0 - £12,900 5.5% 5.5% 5.5% 5.5% 0.0% 

£12,901 to £15,100 5.8% 5.8% 5.8% 5.8% 0.0% 

£15,101 to £19,400 5.9% 5.9% 6.0% 6.0% 0.1% 

£19,401 to £21,000 6.5% 6.5% 6.8% 6.8% 0.3% 

£21,001 to £32,400 6.5% 6.8% 7.2% 7.5% 1.0% 

£32,401 to £43,300 6.8% 7.1% 7.8% 8.2% 1.4% 

£43,301 to £60,000 7.2% 7.8% 8.4% 8.8% 1.6% 

£60,001 to £81,100 7.2% 8.7% 8.8% 9.5% 2.3% 

£81,101 to £100,000 7.5% 9.0% 9.8% 10.5% 3.0% 

£100,001 to £150,000 7.5% 9.3% 10.8% 11.5% 4.0% 

£150,001+ 7.5% 9.5% 11.8% 12.5% 5.0% 

 
 

• Change rate pension is earned from 1/60th pay to 1/67th from April 
2014 

 
5 The consultation document also included as an annex a copy of the 

(employer representatives) Local Government Group’s proposals 
for achieving the savings. These were more complex and involve 
an increase to the LGPS normal retirement age from 65 to 66 for 
service earned after April 2014, an increase to contribution rates 
and the option for employees to choose a lower accrual rate for 
service from April 2014 instead of paying higher contributions. 
 

6 The consultation document sets out the forecast savings from 
options 1 and 2. Interestingly, while both options achieve a saving 
of £900 million a year by 2015, the total savings over the three year 
period are significantly different, with option 1 saving a total of £1.8 
billion and option 2 saving £1.26 billion. 
 

7 The consultation closes on 6 January 2012, with changes expected 
to take effect from April 2012 onwards. 
 

Page 45



Future of the LGPS from 2015 onwards 
 

8 The Government published a paper entitled “Public Service 
Pensions: good pensions that last” on 2 November 2011. This 
reiterated the case for reform and set out an improved offer on the 
future design for public sector pension schemes (to take effect from 
2015). 
 

9 The paper highlights three main reasons that reform is needed: 
 

• Longevity – People are living much longer making current public 
sector pension provision unaffordable and unsustainable in the long 
term 

• Flexibility – Pension provision no longer reflects the way the 
modern labour force lives and works 

• Fairness – Final salary schemes result in the lower-paid 
subsidising the pensions of the highest paid 

 
10 The paper goes on to set out features of the Government’s 

preferred future scheme design as follows: 
 

• A Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) pension scheme 

• Benefits to be earned at a rate of 1/60ths of pensionable earnings 
each year 

• Benefits for active members (employees) to increase each year in 
line with earnings revaluation 

• Normal Pension Age linked to State Pension Age (or 65, 
whichever is higher) 

• Pensions in payment and benefits in deferment to increase in line 
with the Consumer Prices Index (CPI) 

• Average member contributions for the unfunded public service 
pension schemes set at the level of the existing schemes after 
the current proposed increases have been applied 

• Members given the option at retirement to convert £1 of annual 
pension into a £12 one-off lump sum payment in accordance with 
HMRC limits and regulations 

• Ill-health, death and survivors benefits (ancillary benefits) to 
match those currently provided by schemes 

• Members who leave the scheme and rejoin within 5 years to be 
able to link their new service with previous service, as if they had 
always been an active member 

• Members transferring between public service schemes to be 
treated as having continuous active service (which would include 
those transferring between schemes who had rejoined public 
service after a gap of less than 5 years) 

• An employer contribution cap to provide backstop protection to 
the taxpayer against unforeseen costs and risks. 
 

Page 46



11 Individual schemes may vary from this design provided the 
overall cost remains the same. 
 

12 The paper sets out various protections for existing scheme 
members: 

• All accrued rights in the existing schemes will be honoured 

• Final salary benefits will continue to be linked to the final salary 
someone has on leaving the scheme or retiring 

• For those with 10 years of less to their normal pension age on 1 
April 2012, the Government’s objective is to ensure they see no 
change in when they can retire, nor any decrease in the amount 
of pension they receive at normal pension age 

 
13 The paper concludes by stating that “The Government’s offer is 

conditional on the trades unions and the Government reaching 
agreement on the reforms. If agreement has not been reached by 
the end of the year, the Government may need to revisit its 
current proposals.” Given the imminent strike action by most of 
the public sector unions, agreement currently seems to be further 
away than the end of the year. 

 
Recommendation 
 
14 Members are asked to note this report. 
 
15 The full consultation document can be found at 

http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/localgovernment/pdf/2
004147.pdf. The Government’s November paper can be found at 
http://cdn.hm-
treasury.gov.uk/pensions_publicservice_021111.pdf. 
Copies of both documents have been placed in the Members’ 
library. 

 
 

Contact: Nick Orton Tel:  0191 383 4429 

 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Pension Fund Committee 
 

6 December 2011 
 
Academy Schools in the Pension Fund 
 

 

Report of Don McLure, Corporate Director, Resources 

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1 The purpose of the report is to provide Members with information 

on the way Pension Fund assets and liabilities are allocated and 
employer pension contribution rates are set for Academy Trusts 
when schools convert to academy status. 
 

Background 
 
2 The Department for Education’s policy encourages schools to 

pursue academy status and since the beginning of the year 
eighteen academies have been established that have employees 
in the Pension Fund. Nine of these are from schools formerly 
maintained by Darlington Borough Council and nine from schools 
formerly maintained by Durham County Council.  
 

3 Academy Trusts are ‘scheduled body’ employers in the Pension 
Fund, meaning they are automatically entitled to participate in the 
Fund. Academy Trusts need to be set up with their own 
separately identifiable Pension Fund assets and liabilities and 
their own employer contribution rate. 
 

4 There is no national guidance on how assets and liabilities should 
be apportioned. The Local Government Employers organisation 
raised this issue with Communities and Local Government and 
the Department for Education earlier this year and has recently 
met with them to discuss the issue. As yet no guidance has been 
issued and different Pension Fund administering authorities are 
dealing with this issue in different ways. 

 
Scheduled Body Status 
 
5 Previously, ‘scheduled body’ status in the LGPS has almost 

exclusively been reserved for public sector or quasi-public sector 
bodies that could not become insolvent. Academy Trusts are 
different in that they can become insolvent or can be closed down 
at short notice. This means academies technically have a weaker 
employer covenant than local authority controlled schools. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 49



6 There is a potential risk to all other employers in the Pension Fund 
if an academy becomes insolvent and leaves a pension deficit 
which is not taken on by any other organisation. In this situation any 
outstanding deficit would effectively be shared between the 
remaining contributing Pension Fund employers. 
 

7 The Department for Education has written to the Council to 
emphasise its commitment to academy schools, to confirm that 
academy funding agreements are open-ended and to express the 
view that any insolvency risk is minimal. 
 

8 Academy Trusts will be treated in the same was as other 
‘scheduled body’ employers in the Pension Fund, using the same 
assumptions to value their liabilities and using the same 19 year 
deficit correction recovery period. 

 
Summary of treatment of Academy Trusts within the Durham 
County Council Pension Fund 

 
9 The Council, working with the actuary, has considered a range of 

possible options for dealing with Academy Trusts within the 
Pension Fund and has decided on the following approach: 
 

• From the date of conversion a new academy will be established as 
a separate employer in the Pension Fund with (notional) separate 
assets and liabilities. 

• The (notional) asset transfer to a new academy will be determined 
after initially ensuring the original Council’s non-active liabilities are 
‘fully funded’ as at the last valuation date (31 March 2010) and 
applying an adjustment to take account of changes to the overall 
funding level of the Pension Fund since the last valuation. 

• The transfer of pension liabilities to the new academy will be based 
solely on the pension liabilities of the transferring employees. 

• The assumptions used in setting the new academy’s employer 
contribution rate will be the same as those used for other 
Scheduled Body employers in the Fund. 

• The deficit recovery period used for the new academy will be 
nineteen years. 

• The method set out above will be subject to review at the next 
valuation (due as at 31 March 2013, with any contribution changes 
applying from 1 April 2014). 

 
Recommendation 
 
10 Members are asked to note this report. 
 
 

Contact: Nick Orton Tel:  0191 383 4429 

 

Page 50



Agenda Item 11

Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

Page 59

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13

Page 67

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

Page 79

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 101

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 111

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 15

Page 117

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 16

Page 141

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 149

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 161

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 165

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 172

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 173

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 178

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17

Page 179

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 234

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 18

Page 235

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 242

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 19

Page 243

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 244

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 245

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 266

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 The Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 29 September 2011
	3 Graphs showing recent movements of the Stock and Share Indices
	FTSE N America
	FTSE Europe
	FTSE Japan
	FTSE Ex Japan
	10 year Bond Yields
	Graph 3 - 30yr and 10yr index-linked gilts
	30 year gilt

	4 Graphs showing recent movements of the major currencies against sterling
	Euro vs £
	£ vs Yen

	5 Performance Measurement Report
	Performance Measurement Report

	6 Pension Fund Investments
	Pension Fund Investment Table 1
	Pension Fund Investment Table 2

	7 Government Consultation on Changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme
	8 Academy Schools in the Pension Fund
	11 The Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 29 September 2011
	12 Report of the Pension Fund Advisor
	13 Report of Blackrock
	14 Report of Alliance Bernstein
	Alliance Bernstein 2
	Alliance Bernstein 3
	Alliance Bernstein 5
	Alliance Bernstein 4

	15 Report of CB Richard Ellis
	16 Report of Edinburgh Partners
	Edinburgh Partners 2
	Edinburgh Partners 3
	Edinburgh Partners 4
	Edinburgh Partners 5

	17 Report of Royal London Asset Management
	18 Report of Barings Asset Management
	19 Internal Audit Progress Report
	Internal Audit Progress Report - Appendix


